
11 August 2014 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 11 August 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
 

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



11 August 2014 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 28 July 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

 
a) Recognition of Retiree Lt. Irvin Robinson 
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-02-A, Authorizing the Resubmission of 

an Application for the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources (NCDENR) Division of Water Infrastructure for a CDBG Infrastructure 
Project.  (CAF 14-10-E)[See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-02-A 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-52, Designating the Henderson Police 
Department Training Center Open Shelter Area as the Lt. Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. 
Recreation Shelter.  (CAF 14-90)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 ● Resolution 14-52 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



11 August 2014 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-67, Authorizing a Lease Agreement 

Between the Holy Innocents Episcopal Church and City of Henderson for the Use of 
Breckenridge Park Located at the Corner of Breckenridge Street and Walnut Street 
for Recreational Purposes.  (CAF 14-86)  [See Notebook Tab 4] 

 
● Resolution 14-67 
 

c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-36, Amending Section 7-79.0, Section 7-
79.1, Section 7-79.2 and Section 7-83 of the City Code Relative to Changing Certain 
Parking Regulations Because of Changing Conditions. (CAF 14-75)  [See Notebook 
Tab 5] 

  
 ● Ordinance 14-36 
 

 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-50, Providing for the Disposition of 
Jointly Held Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 306 Main 
Street, Tax Parcel #0061-05019. (CAF 14-88)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-50 
 
XI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by 
City Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of 
business by the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in 
the form listed.  If discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in 
question will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the 
revised consent agenda has been approved.  
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-37 Revising the City Code to 

Appropriately Reflect City Council Committees.  (CAF 14-79) [See Notebook Tab 7] 
 

 Ordinance 14-37 
  
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-39-A, Accepting the 2014 BJA Grant in the 

amount of $16,935; and Ordinance 14-39, FY15 Budget Amendment #3, Establishing the 
2014 BJA Grant Project Budget. (CAF 14-61-A)  [See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
 Resolution 14-39-A 
 Ordinance 14-39 



11 August 2014 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
XII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 
 

XIII. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 9] 
ii. Reports 

 Fire Department July Report 
 

XIV. CLOSED SESSION 
 

a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT   

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Non-Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 1 of 10 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting and Work Session 

28 July 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons, and 
George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members D. Michael Rainey and Garry D. Daeke 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director 
Clark Thomas, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams and Interim Recreation and Parks 
Director Steve Osborne. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session of the Henderson City Council was 
called to order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:02 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council 
Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed County Commissioner Hester and other guests and said it is always 
good to have citizens present. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 2 of 10 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  Council Member Inscoe 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and 
unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the 14 July 2014 Regular Meeting minutes as presented.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, and unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approving Four Rivers Resource, Conservation & Development Council’s (RC&D) 
Application for Trail Work at Fox Pond.  (Reference: CAF 14-65; Resolution 14-65) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained Mr. Tom Potter, from Four Rivers RC&D, approached the City 
as it would once again like to apply for a grant to complete the trail loop at Fox Pond Park.  If 
awarded, RC&D is asking for $5,000 from both the County and City.  The County has agreed to 
contribute the requested $5,000 match and if the application is approved, the City can take 
$5,000 from the General Fund Balance or part of both the City and County monies could come 
from Recreation and Parks. Mr. Griffin reminded Council a final approval will be necessary if 
awarded, and a decision on where to take the $5,000 can be made at that time. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for the Balance of the Recreation & Parks Trust Fund.  Mr. 
Griffin apologized for not providing this previously requested information; however, Finance 
Director Brafford said she believed the fund has $17,000-$18,000. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Inscoe to approve Resolution 14-65, Approving Four 
Rivers Resource, Conservation & Development Council’s (RC&D) Application for Trail Work at 
Fox Pond. Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye.  NO: None. 
ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 77) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 3 of 10 

 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of June 2014.  (Reference:  CAF 14-
77) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is a routine matter and no exceptions were noted by Finance 
Director Brafford.  The June tax releases and refunds are found below: 
 

Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2008 29.38                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2008 29.38                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2008 233.45                  

Voegeli, Becky L
Demo lien & Admin fees 
lost to foreclosure

2008 12,274.00             

Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2009 30.42                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes lost to foreclosure 2009 27.67                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2009 30.42                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2009 241.72                  
Voegeli, Becky L Taxes lost to foreclosure 2009 119.16                  
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2010 30.42                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes lost to foreclosure 2010 27.67                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2010 30.42                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2010 241.72                  

Rogers, John C
Sold to Redevelopment 
Commission/Government

2010 184.57                  

Voegeli, Becky L Taxes lost to foreclosure 2010 119.16                  
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2011 30.42                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2011 30.42                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2011 241.67                  
Voegeli, Becky L Taxes lost to foreclosure 2011 119.15                  
Alston, Donald Pers. Prop. Billed in error 2012 34.78                    
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2012 30.42                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes lost to foreclosure 2012 27.66                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2012 30.42                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2012 241.67                  
Voegeli, Becky L Taxes lost to foreclosure 2012 449.15                  
Alston, Donald Pers. Prop. Billed in error 2013 36.86                    
Carolina Power & Light State Assessed 2013 5,452.83               
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2013 32.24                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes lost to foreclosure 2013 29.31                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2013 32.24                    
Merritt, James Taxes lost to foreclosure 2013 256.12                  
Voegeli, Becky L Taxes lost to foreclosure 2013 486.28                  
Total R&P Property Releases 22,091.53$           

Real & Personal Property
Refunds $0.00

Total R& P  Property Refunds $0.00
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 22,091.53$           



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 4 of 10 

June 2014 Tax Releases
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2003 19.83                    
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2004 20.80                    
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2005 21.78                    
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2006 141.78                  
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2006 21.78                    
Merritt, Samuel N. Heir Taxes lost to foreclosure 2006 218.15                  
Jenkins, Sondra J. & Others Taxes lost to foreclosure 2007 21.78                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes lost to foreclosure 2007 159.83                  
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes lost to foreclosure 2007 21.78                    
Merritt, Samuel N. Heir Taxes lost to foreclosure 2007 232.82                   
Vehicle Releases
Carpenter, Penny Sue Pro-Rate 2012 4.31
Evans, Walter Leon Pro-Rate 2013 3.68
Hargrove, Kennith Lee Pro-Rate 2013 10.02
Heyward, Tony Nathaniel Pro-Rate 2013 21.04
Nelson, Beverly Denise Pro-Rate 2013 2.56
Pettaway, Bryan Oneal Military Non-Resident 2013 128.52
Shaheed, Tallibdin Abdus Transfer Out 2013 30.07
Tarmac Educational Services Pro-Rate 2013 8.11
Variety Wholesalers Pro-Rate 2013 77.13
Williams, Anita Michelle Billed in NCVTS 2013 20.54
Total Vehicle Releases 305.98$                

Vehicle Refunds
Purcell, Charles Flour & Deborah Alber Correct Situs 2012 197.43
Brown, Camille Alesha Pro-Rate 2013 9.53
Dechiara, Amanda Rae Pro-Rate 2013 11.84
Hawley, Geraldine Pro-Rate 2013 1.04
Kent, Charles Eugene J Pro-Rate 2013 0.98
Londono, Hector Andres Pro-Rate 2013 11.43
Vandall, Steven Ray & Carroll, Kenneth Neal Pro-Rate 2013 10.10
Total Vehicle Refunds 242.35$                
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 548.33$                

Total All Releases & Refunds 22,639.86$            
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the Tax Releases and Refunds from 
Vance County for the Month of June 2014.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe, and 
APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons, Daye and 
Kearney.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: Rainey and Daeke. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 5 of 10 

Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform 
Geotechnical Work to Aid in the Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Replacement and FY15 Budget 
Amendment #2 Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP Budget to Incorporate the 
Above Mention Project.  (Reference:  CAF 14-85; Resolution 14-66, Ordinance 14-16 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to come forward.  Mr. Frazier 
explained the design for the Elmwood Sewer project is underway.  He said after review, staff 
feels geotechnical work will assist in obtaining more accurate bids.  Engineering Director 
Thomas added since the new line will be placed next to the existing sewer line a blast could 
crack the existing 15” clay pipe which could cause major problems. He also said ECS will do a 
sampling of the soil from various areas and the cost will be $1,600 per day for three (3) days.  
Mr. Thomas said this should provide a good sampling 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if no rock is found would the bids be lower.  Mr. Thomas 
responded if no rock is found, the bid should be more accurate and therefore lower.  
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 14-66, Authorizing the Mayor to 
Execute an Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Geotechnical Work to Aid in the 
Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Replacement and Ordinance 14-16, FY15 Budget Amendment #2 
Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP Budget to Incorporate the Above Mention Project.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons, Daye, Kearney and Coffey.  NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: Rainey and Daeke.   (See Resolution Book 4, p 79, Ordinance Book 9, p 95) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address City Council.  
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager  (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  (No Report) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 6 of 10 

REGULAR WORK SESSION 
 
Request from Vance County Citizen Tommy Hester Regarding Water Lines in the US158 
Bypass and Oxford and Poplar Creek Roads Areas.  (Reference:  CAF 14-82) 
 
Mayor O’Geary invited County Commissioner Tommy Hester to the podium.  Mr. Hester stated 
he is here at the request of the constituents in Commissioner District F district and is not 
representing the County.  He then introduced County Water Engineer Time Carpenter and 
County Water System OSM Manager, Mike Meyers, from Envirolink who accompanied Mr. 
Henderson to assist with the presentation.   He expressed his appreciation to Council and said the 
last 2-3 years it has been great to see the County and City working so well together.   
 
He then proceeded to distribute a map of the area which included his suggested options. The map 
also listed the number of possible connections and the number of current “sign-ups: for water in 
his Commissioner’s District.  Mr. Hester said the County has approximately $500,000 left from 
Phase 1A of its water project and he does not want to see the monies returned to the USDA. He 
did say there is a time limit for using the funds which he thought expired in approximately 12 
months and added right-of-ways are in the process of being obtained in certain areas, although he 
did not specify which areas. 
 
To summarize, Mr. Hester said there are citizens in his Commissioner’s District who would like 
water and fire protection, and he would like to work with the City to find the best way to obtain 
this service. He offered to return at any time if Council needs further information. 
 
Council Member Coffey suggested this item be considered at a future work session to provide 
time for consideration.   
 
City Manager Griffin agreed a work session is needed.  He added since this is not an official 
request from the County, he would contact the County Manager and County Commission 
Chairperson Brown in order to establish proper protocol and communication with the County on 
this issue.  When City/County discussions begin, Mr. Griffin suggested using City Liaison Mr. 
Mike Inscoe.  He also said determination of the specific service area(s) will need to be 
established. 
 
Council Member Coffey stated she was in agreement with Mr. Hester that water is important and 
others agreed.  
 
Council agreed a work session to discuss further is needed and the consensus was as follows: 
YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: 
None.  ABSENT: Rainey and Daeke. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 7 of 10 

Revising the City Code to Appropriately Reflect City Council Committees.  (Reference: 
CAF 14-79;  Ordinance 14-37) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked City Clerk McCrackin to explain this request.  Ms. McCrackin said 
several changes have been made by Resolution regarding Council committees.  However, an 
ordinance was never created to properly record these committee changes.  She said the ordinance 
before Council this evening officially updates the City Code to reflect the changes which 
occurred in 2010 and 2011.  
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for a consensus of Council.  The consensus to 
bring this before Council at the next regular meeting for consideration is as follows:  YES: 
Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT: Rainey and Daeke. 
 
Staff Review of Various Locations in Which Changing Conditions May Warrant 
Amendments to the city Code Relative to Certain Parking Regulations. (Reference:  CM 14-
26) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to further explain this issue.  Mr. 
Frazier said with changing conditions, changes need to be made in various areas to parking  
restrictions, loading zones, etc.  He said some changes to the code are technical such as changing 
Beckford Street to the proper name, Beckford Avenue.  
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the update would be done in stages to which Mr. Frazier 
responded yes. 
 
There were no further questions and Council expressed its desire for Mr. Frazier to move 
forward with this project as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons 
and Daye.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke. 
 
Review of Summer Sewer Credit Vis-a-Vis Residential Pools. (Reference: CM 14-25) 
 
City Manager Griffin said at the last meeting Council Member Rainey asked for a discussion to 
consider amending the current watering credit policy, which is really a sewer credit, to include 
filling swimming pools.  He said the existing policy is very generous and expressed concern that 
the more broad the policy the harder it is to administer.  If Council chooses to include pools, it is 
recommended that only those pools not connected to City sewer be granted to exception. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked how many residents have a separate meter for filling a pool.  Mr. Griffin 
said that is an unknown.  One of the problems --- knowing who has separate meters and how to 
determine when a pool is being filled verses perhaps a leak.   
 
Council Member Inscoe asked how the City would know if a pool was connected.  Mr. Frazier 
said there are a few. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 8 of 10 

Council Member Coffey felt above ground pools are probably not connected to sewer but 
probably in-ground pools are connected.  She asked what it costs to fill a pool.  Mr. Frazier said 
it varies and that some have pools filled by the fire department. 
 
Council Member Simmons asked how often a pool is filled.  Council Member Coffey said every 
year for above ground pools. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked about staffing to administer and monitor a policy change.  Mr. 
Griffin said that is one of the problems and added how is the City to determine whether a pool is 
being filled or if there is a leak or someone decided to power wash a structure. 
 
Council Member Kearney was in agreement with staff that the policy should remain as it is 
presently stated.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s consensus that no changes be made to the present policy 
which was as follows:   Yes:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye.  NO:  
None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke. 
 
Automotive Repair and Oil Change 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to present this item.  Mr. Frazier said 
RFPs (Request for Proposal) were sent to eleven (11) vendors within Vance County to determine 
the possibility of outsourcing the Fleet repair/service needs. He said one (1) vendor reported they 
were too small to handle this type of work and only one (1) vendor submitted an RFP (Pete 
Smith Automotive).  Mr. Frazier said after careful analysis staff determined there is no need to 
outsource at this time.  He said the City receives discounts from local dealers and from 
government providers. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if fuel is obtained through a government agency/contract.  Mr. 
Frazier said no.  He added fuel prices are monitored weekly and usually purchased every 3-4 
weeks.    Mr. Inscoe also asked if the labor costs shown included personnel expenses and 
insurance claims.  Mr. Griffin responded yes to personnel expenses but said claims would go 
through the City’s insurance.  He added there has not been a claim in this department in recent 
memory.  Mr. Griffin also said this department has been reduced to 3.5 employees. 
 
Council Member Simmons asked if the reduction in staffing was because the position is vacant, 
frozen or eliminated.  Mr. Griffin said the position was eliminated. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there was any way to lock in a price.  Mr. Frazier said he has 
asked but no one is willing because of the volatility of fuel costs. 
 
Council Member Kearney felt the numbers were self-explanatory and saw no need to outsource 
the garage at this time.  He added if the garage was outsourced there would still be a need for 
oversight.  Mr. Kearney felt this was a good exercise and that it should be left as is. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 9 of 10 

Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was in agreement to not outsourcing the garage, and the 
consensus was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke. 
 
Various Options to Improve Traffic and Pedestrian Safety on Belle Street Adjacent to the 
Post Office.  (Reference: CM 14-22) 
 
The City Manager asked Engineering Director Thomas to present these options.  Mr. Thomas 
shared there are two main issues with the current traffic pattern.  One is the location of the mail 
drop box which requires vehicles to cross traffic and the other issue is even with stop sticks and 
signage, the exit is too close to the intersection of Garnett and Belle streets.  He then reviewed 
the four options and said if Council would like to pursue this matter, he would explore this 
matter further with the U.S. Postal Service and the neighborhood. 
 
The four options suggested to alleviate the traffic hazards are: 1) A turn-out with the mail drop 
box on Post Office property to accommodate driver’s side window access; 2) Mail drop boxes 
relocated to existing driveway entrance into the Post Office; 3) change traffic pattern through 
parking lot and site mail drop boxes in front of post office; and 4) set mail drop boxes in an 
island in the centerline of Belle Street. 
 
Council Member Inscoe felt Option 3 would be best and wondered how long it would take for 
the post office to agree.  Council Member Kearney agreed and said he felt Option 3 would have 
the least impact. 
 
Council Member Inscoe then asked if this could be pursued as soon as possible with the post 
office since he recently observed someone who dropped mail in the drop box and continued on 
the wrong side of the street with another vehicle traveling on the correct side of the street but 
neither had any place to go because of the stop sticks. 
 
Council Member Kearney added this change would be a benefit to the post office as it would 
keep customers from parking in the fire lane. 
 
The Mayor asked for the consensus of Council to move forward with Option 3 with the 
following response:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons, and Daye.  NO:  
None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke.  
 
Potential Grant Sources from “Brownfield Assessment Grant” and “Inactive Landfill 
Assessment Grant.  (CM 14-23) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Thomas to return to the podium to review this 
item.  Mr. Thomas said Locklear, Locklear and Jacobs addressed Council previously regarding 
potential “Brownfield” sources.  He explained this grant deals with cleaning up industrial sites 
with potential contaminates that could provide risks in the future environmentally, socially and 
economically.  He explained the Inactive grant is similar but is specific to old unlined landfills 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 28 July 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes  
Page 10 of 10 

such as the site on Ramsey Street.  Mr. Thomas said it is the recommendation of staff to pursue 
these sources. 
 
City Manager Griffin added if Council wishes to pursue this, RFPs will be prepared and the 
responses will be brought back before Council. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there was anything Council needed to do and the response was 
nothing at this time. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s consensus regarding moving forward with this issue and the 
response was as follows:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons and Daye. 
NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  Rainey and Daeke. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council would like to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Coffey, and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 

 



CAF 14-10-E: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting:   
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

1 August 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-10-E 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-02-A, Authorizing the Resubmission of an 
Application for the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
(NCDENR) Division of Water Infrastructure for a CDBG Infrastructure Project 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure: To provide reliable, dependable and 

environmentally compliant infrastructure systems. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-02-A, Authorizing the Resubmission of an Application to the North 

Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources (NCDENR) Division of Water 
Infrastructure for CDBG Infrastructure Project. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The City Council approved Resolution 14-02 on 24 March 2014 authorizing the submission of an 
application to the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources (NCDENR) 
Division of Water Infrastructure for a CDBG Infrastructure grant which was composed of the Newton 
Dairy Gravity Sewer Extension and Birch and Bobbitt Streets sewer extension projects.   
 
It appears that the projects scored well and narrowly missed funding per discussion with McGill 
Associates who submitted the application on behalf of the City. 
 
Two Public Hearings were held, however, to insure the City has met all requirements of the CDBG 
Program, an additional Public Hearing is needed to discuss various aspects of the CDBG Program. 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14 Regular  Meeting 



CAF 14-10-E: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting:   
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
Below is a summary of the project applied for: 
 

Newton Dairy Road Gravity Sewer Extension and Birch and Bobbitt Streets’ Sewer 
Extension.  The Newton Dairy Road Project would eliminate an aging pump station and the 
Birch and Bobbitt Streets’ project would extend sewer into an area with failing septic systems.  
The estimated cost for both projects is $1,532,400.  (Estimate and maps attached) 
 

The deadline for resubmittal of this application is 2 September 2014. 
 

Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 14-02-A 
2. Estimates  



CAF 14-10-E: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting:   
Page 3 of 4 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-02-A 
 

AUTHORIZING THE RESUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE  
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

(NCDENR) DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR  
A CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in February 2014 

and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally 

Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 
 

WHEREAS, City Council approved the initial submission for a 2014 CDBG Infrastructure Grant on 24 March 
2014 via Resolution 14-02; and 

 
WHEREAS, this grant is for various water and sewer projects, which have been identified as in dire need of 

replacement or extensions thereof and will provide resources to areas that have severe public health 
needs due to failed septic systems and/or less than adequate existing water and/or sewer mains; and 

 
WHEREAS, although the project scored well in the review process, funding was not provided in the first 

round of allocations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson seeks approval to resubmit a 2014 CDBG Infrastructure Grant 

Application; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no grant match required for these funds and is not considered in the scoring calculation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY authorize the resubmission of a grant application to the NCDENR Division of Water 
Infrastructure for a CDBG Infrastructure project as listed below: 

 
 Newton Dairy Road Gravity Sewer Extension and Birch and Bobbitt Streets’ Sewer Extension. 
  
The foregoing Resolution 14-02-A, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** day of 
**** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 _____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, pp. **, CAF 14-10-E 



CAF 14-10-E: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting:   
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 CAF 14-10-E 
 Attachment #2



CAF 14-90: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

4 August 2014 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-90 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-52, Designating the Henderson Police 
Department Training Center Open Shelter Area as the Lt. Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. 
Recreation Shelter. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 CV8: We value our employees and the contributions they make to the City and to the citizens and 

customers of our community. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
Approval of Resolution 14-52, Designating the Henderson Police Department Training Center Shelter 
Area as the Lt. Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. Recreation Shelter. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Lieutenant I.W. Robinson, Jr. joined the Henderson Police Department in February 1979 and after 35 
years retired from the City of Henderson on 1 August 2014. Police Chief Marcus Barrow has requested 
that the Henderson City Council recognize Lieutenant Robinson’s extensive service and his being an 
integral part of the building, development and maintenance of the Henderson Police Department Training 
Center facility from the start of the facility through his 35 years of services by the designation of the open 
shelter area of the K.K. Robinson Police Training Center as the Lt. Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. 
Recreation Shelter.  
 
 
Enclosures 

1. Resolution 14-52 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:   11 Aug 2014 Reg. Meeting 
                        



CAF 14-90: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 14-52 
 

DESIGNATING THE HENDERSON POLICE DEPARTMENT TRAINING CENTER 
OPEN SHELTER AREA AS THE  

LIEUTENANT IRVIN WHEELER ROBINSON, JR. RECREATION SHELTER 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 

twelve (12) Core Values and Principals at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS one of the Core Values is addressed by this request as follows:  CV8: We value our 

employees and the contributions they make to the City and to the citizens and customers 
of our community; and 

 
WHEREAS, Lieutenant I.W. Robinson, Jr. of the Henderson Police Department retired with full 

benefits on 1 August 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Lieutenant I.W. Robinson, Jr. has served the Henderson Police Department since 

February 1979; and 
 
WHEREAS, from the initial establishment of the Kenneth Knight Robinson Henderson Police 

Department Training Center Lieutenant Robinson has been an active and integral part of 
the building, developing and maintaining that facility during his 35 years of service to the 
Henderson Police Department and, 

 
WHEREAS, the open shelter area of the Henderson Police Department Training Center was 

recently destroyed by fire and rebuilt under the supervision of Lieutenant Robinson; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marcus W. Barrow, Chief of Police, and the Command Staff of the Henderson 

Police Department have requested that the area of the open shelter be designated as the 
“Lieutenant Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. Recreational Shelter”.  

 
NOW,THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE  that the open shelter area of the Kenneth Knight Robinson 
Police Department Training Center at 3755 Highway 158, Henderson be designated the 
Lieutenant Irvin Wheeler Robinson, Jr. Recreation Shelter 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-52, introduced by Councilmember ****** and seconded by 
Councilmember ****** on this the **** day of **** 2014, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was approved by the following votes: Ayes:    Nays:   
       __________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 



CAF 14-86: 11 August 14 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 July 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-86 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-67, Authorizing a Lease Agreement Between 
the Holy Innocents Episcopal Church and City of Henderson for the use of Breckenridge 
Park located at the Corner of Breckenridge Street and Walnut Street for Recreational 
Purposes. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 7:  Expand Leisure and Cultural Services, Programs and Facilities  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-67, Authorizing a Lease Agreement Between the Holy Innocents 

Episcopal Church and the City of Henderson for the use of Breckenridge Park located at the Corner of 
Breckenridge Street and Walnut Street for Recreational Purposes. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
In 1976 an agreement was entered into between the Holy Innocents Episcopal Church and the City of 
Henderson granting the City the use of the lot on the corner of Breckenridge and Walnut Street for 
recreational purposes.  The lease was for the period of ten years.  In 1996 it was renewed for another ten 
year period and expired in 2006.   
 
As it is the desire of the City to continue to have use of this lot for recreational purposes, it is imperative 
that a new lease agreement be put into place.  As per previous agreements, this lease will be for a ten year 
period beginning on 1 August 2014 in the amount of $1.00 per year.  
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 14-67 
 

 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-86: 11 August 14 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION 14-67 
AUTHORIZING A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HOLY INNOCENTS 

EPISCOPAL CHURCH AND CITY OF HENDERSON FOR THE USE OF 
BRECKENRIDGE PARK LOCATED AT THE CORNER OF BRECKENRIDGE 

STREET AND WALNUT STREET FOR RECREATIONAL PURPOSES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 7: To expand leisure and culture services, programs 

and facilities to meet the needs of a diverse community, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Holy Innocents Episcopal Church owns property located on the corner of 
Walnut Street and Breckenridge Street behind said Church; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson in the past has leased said property from the Church for park 

and recreational purposes for a period of ten (10) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Lease has now terminated; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to renew said Lease for an additional ten (10) years for the 

sum of $1.00 per year on the conditions that the property be used for park and 
recreational purposes only and that the City endorse the Lessor on its liability insurance 
policy and agree to maintain and take good care of the premises. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Henderson agrees 

to renew the Lease of the Breckenridge Park from the Holy Innocents Episcopal Church 
for ten (10) additional years for the sum of $1.00 per year on the conditions set forth in 
Attachment A to this Resolution.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to sign said 

Lease. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-67, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2013:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 14-86 



CAF 14-86: 11 August 14 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 3 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
         LEASE 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 
 This Lease, made and entered into this the 1st day of August, 2014, by and between the 
VESTRY OF THE CHURCH OF THE HOLY INNOCENTS (EPISCOPAL CHURCH) OF
HENDERSON, VANCE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, (hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”), and 
CITY OF HENDERSON (hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”); 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 Subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Lessor lets and leases unto the
Lessee (and the Lessee accepts as tenant of the Lessor) a certain parcel of land located on the 
Southeastern corner of Breckenridge and Walnut Streets in the City of Henderson and described as
follows: 
 

BEGIN at a point on the South side of Walnut Street, Harrell-Church corner, and run 
thence along said Street North 54° 15’ East 134 feet to said Breckenridge Street; thence 
South 36° 15’ East 163.6 feet to a point Harrell-Church corner; thence South 54° 15’ 
West 132 feet; thence North 37° West 163.6 feet to the point of the beginning, being Lots 
#1, #2, #3 and #4 of the Harrell property as recited upon a plat made by S. E. Jennett, 
Engineer, June 5, 1962, of record in Map Book “M” at Page 37, Vance Registry. See 
Book 391, Page 242 and deed in Book 406 at Page 282, Vance Registry. 

 
 This Lease is on the following terms and conditions for the following period of time: 
 

(1) The above property shall be used for park and recreational purposes only. 
(2) This Lease shall begin as of August 1, 2014 and shall exist and continu through midnight

July 31, 2024. 
(3) As rental for said premises, the Lessee shall pay Lessor the sum of One Dollar ($1.00)

per year payable on or before January the first of said Lease Year. 
(4) The Lessee shall endorse the Lessor on the Lessee’s liability insurance policy relative to

any injuries or damages which may occur to others from the use of the premises by the
Lessee. 

(5) The Lessee accepts the property in its present condition and agrees to take good care of
the premises. Upon the termination of this Lease, the Lessee has the right to remove any
playground equipment or fences which it places upon the property provided the Lessee
surrenders the premises in a flat, neat and orderly fashion (it being understood, whoever,
that the Lessee may desire to leave certain fences and will probably leave concrete or 
asphalt slabs upon the property). 

 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in
duplicate originals all by authority of their respective Boards. 

 
 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON     VESTRY OF THE CHURCH OF THE 
        HOLY INNOCENTS 
By:_______________________________   By:_______________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor     Senior Warden 
 
Attest:        By:_______________________________ 
__________________________________    Senior Warden 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
(Municipal Seal)  

  

Resolution 14-67 
Attachment A



 

CAF 14-75: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

31 July 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-75: 
 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-36, Amending Section 7-79.0, Section 7-
 79.1, Section 7-79.2, and Section 7-83 of the City Code Relative to Changing Certain 
 Parking Regulations Because of Changing Conditions. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-36, Amending Section 7-79.0, Section 7-79.1, Section 7-79.2, and 

Section 7-83 of the City Code Relative to Changing Certain Parking Regulations Because of 
Changing Conditions. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City Council asked for staff to review regulations on city streets regarding traffic signs and 
other regulations that are no longer applicable due to changing conditions.  Ordinance 14-36 
brings forth additional changes for the City Council to consider.  
 
The staff is continuing to look at other areas which will be brought forth upon completion and 
review by the City Attorney. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 1.  Ordinance 14-36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14 Regular Meeting 



 

CAF 14-75: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE  14-36  
 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING CERTAIN PARKING REGULATIONS  
DUE TO CHANGING CONDITIONS  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That the following technical amendments be made to the Schedule of Streets set forth 
in Section 7-79 to appropriately state the correct name of the street as follows: 
 

“Beckford Avenue” shall be changed to “Beckford Drive” as noted in four spaces. 
 
“Beckford Avenue Drive” on both sides from N.C. 39 (West Andrews Avenue) to the end 
of the city limits.” 
 
“Beckford Avenue Drive on both sides from Parrish Mill Road to N.C. 39 (West 
Andrews Avenue).” 
 
“Beckford Avenue Drive on both sides from NC 39 (West Andrews Avenue) to US 1 
Business North. 
 
“Roanoke Avenue, both sides from Dabney Drive to West Andrews Avenue (NC 39) 
Beckford Drive.” 
 

 
Section 2.  That the following be deleted from the Schedule of Streets set forth in Subparagraph 
(a) of Section 7-79.0 of the City Code (Parking prohibited at all times on certain streets):   
 

“Granite Street on the north side from Chestnut to Mrs. H. H. Bass, Jr.’s Driveway.” 
 
“Mitchell Street, on the north side beginning two hundred ninety (290) feet east of 
William Street for a distance of one hundred (100) feet east.” 
 
“Montgomery Street (West), on the north side, beginning one hundred thirty-six (136) 
feet west of the western curbline of Chestnut Street and running West for two hundred 
nine (209) feet to Walnut Street.” 
 
“William Street, on the west side, from the southern end of the unloading zone at the 
American Railway Express Office to Chavasse Avenue.” 
 
“Winder Street, on the south side, at the western edge of the driveway to the United 
States Post Office and running thence in a westerly direction to Wyche Street.” 
 
“Wyche Street, on the west side, between Winder Street and the taxi stand near 
Breckenridge Street.  Except, it shall be lawful to park a truck on the west side of the 



 

CAF 14-75: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

street for actually loading and unloading the vehicle, but at no other time and for no other 
purpose.” 
 
“Zene Street, on the west side, beginning at the southern curb line of Turner Avenue and 
run thence in a southerly direction for a distance of ninety-two (92) feet (to be in effect 
from August 1st to October 31st only in each year).” 
 

 
Section 3.  That the following amendment to Schedule of Streets set forth in Section 7-79.1 be 
made:  

“Chavasse Avenue, on the north side, beginning at the western curb line of Arch Street 
and running thence in a westerly direction fifty six feet. to College Street.” 
 
“North Street, on both sides, beginning at Lincoln Street and continuing in a southerly 
direction one (1) block to its intersection with North Street (as it extends westward from 
NC Highway 39).” 
 

Section 4.  That the following be deleted from the Schedule of Streets set forth in Section 7-79.1 
(relating to parking zones), inasmuch as the need for the same no longer exists: 
 

“Dorsey Avenue, between Raleigh Road and Belle Street.” 
 
Section 5.  That the following technical amendments be made to the Schedule of Streets set forth 
in Section 7-79.2 to appropriately state the correct name of the street as follows: 
 
 “ Beckford Avenue Drive on both sides, beginning at Daniel Street and extending 
 easterly to the city limits.”  
 
Section 6.  That the following be deleted from Schedule Streets as set forth in Section 7-83 Two 
Hour parking on certain streets- 8:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M.:  
 

“Zene Street, on the west side, from the corner of Turner Avenue to the loading zone at 
Reynolds Tobacco Factory.” 

 
Section 7.   The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of 
its passage. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 14-36, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 

seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2011:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 



 

CAF 14-75: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby 
certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-36, An Ordinance Changing 
Certain Parking Regulations Because Of Changing Conditions, adopted by the Henderson, City Council 
in Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 42, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  ** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 14 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

30 July 2014 
 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-88 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-50, Providing for the Disposition of 
Jointly Held Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 306 Main 
Street, Tax Parcel # 0061-05019 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 CV 9:(Core Values)  We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and 

believe that by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic 
challenges and opportunities facing our community. 

 
 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Resolution 14-50, Providing for the Disposition of Jointly Held Property by the 

City and County Otherwise Identified as 306 Main Street, Tax Parcel # 0061-05019. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
Vance County Tax Department has received interest from a private buyer to bid on and purchase 
the property located at 306 Main Street. The offer to purchase is for $750. The property assessed 
tax value for 306 Main Street is $17,180 and prior to tax foreclosure the unpaid taxes totaled 
$2,326.09. 
  
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14  Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 14 

 

Although the City has spent $240 on weed abatement since 2012, it has no liens against this 
property as the City and County were joint owners at that time. Therefore it is requested Council 
approve the transfer of these properties to Vance County with the understanding upon the sale, 
the proceeds will be shared on a pro-rata basis.   
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 14-50 
2. Offer to Purchase 
3. Vance County Request 
4. Property Tax Record 
5. Deed 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION 14-50 
 

PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF A JOINTLY HELD 
PROPERTY BY THE CITY AND COUNTY OTHERWISE 

IDENTIFIED 306 MAIN STREET, VANCE COUNTY DEED BOOK 
1245 PAGE 276 

 
 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
February 2014, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Core Value as follows:  CV 9: maintain a good 

working relationship with the County of Vance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) have previously 

discussed the possibility of disposing jointly owned properties acquired through the tax 
foreclosure process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the process to dispose of jointly held properties is cumbersome; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is a potential buyer for the previously mentioned property located at 306 Main 

Street and described in Vance County Register of Deeds Book 1245 at page 276 on tract 
(e) in both City and County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and City administrations believe it appropriate for the City to transfer 

its interest in said property to the County in order that it might be more expeditiously 
sold; and  

 
WHEREAS, once sold, the City would receive its pro-rata share of the proceeds from the 

County. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the following: 
 

1. The City Attorney to work with the County Attorney to expeditiously prepare the 
necessary agreements and documents to effect the transfer of the aforementioned 
property from the City of Henderson to the County of Vance. 

2. Said transfer of interests in property is predicated upon and conditioned by the 
appropriate pro-rata division of any net proceeds from the eventual sale of said 
properties, either individually or collectively, between the City and County. 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 14 

 

3. The Mayor or his appointee is authorized to sign any such agreements and documentation 
as prepared and approved by the City Attorney to effect the transfer of said property to 
the County of Vance. 

The foregoing Resolution 14-50 upon motion of Council Member**and second by Council 
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of ---------2014:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:     
 
   

      _____________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 14 

 

CAF 14-88 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 14 

 

 

 CAF 14-88 
 Attachment #3 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 14 

 

 
 
 

 
VANCE COUNTY PROPERTY TAX NOTICE 

OFFICE LOCATION: 
122 YOUNG ST SUITE E 
HENDERSON NC 27536 

OFFICE HOURS: MON-FRI 8:30 - 5:00PM 
WEBSITE ADDRESS: vancecounty.org 

VANCE COUNTY-CITY OF HENDERSON 
122 YOUNG ST STE B 
HENDERSON, NC 27536 

 

 

TAX YEAR DUE DATE ACCOUNT NUMBER BILL NUMBER 
 2014   9-02-2014  24888 9205808  

 
RECEIPT NUM DESCRIPTION PARCEL NUMBER VALUE DISTRICT AMOUNT ASSESSED

9257439  306 MAIN ST.  0061 05019 $17,180.00 102 $105.00 

 
 

 

 

 CAF 14-88 
 Attachment #4 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 14 

 

 

CAF 14-88 
Attachment #5 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-88: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 14 

 

 
 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

29 July 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-79 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-37, Revising the City Code to 
Appropriately Reflect City Council Committees 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 CV 4: We value the public trust and will perform our duties and responsibilities with the 

highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-37, Revising the City Code to Appropriately Reflect City Council 

Committees 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
During the 11 January 2010 Council Meeting, Resolution 10-05 was approved to reorganize the 
committee structure.  The reorganization incorporated all the committees into the Committee of 
the Whole, except the Human Resources Committee, the Public Safety Committee, the Land 
Planning and Development Committee and the Boards and Commissions Committee. 
 
During the 10 January 2011 Council Meeting, Resolution 11-17 was approved which granted the 
Mayor authority to appoint a City Council Liaison and folded the Inter-Governmental Committee 
into the Committee of the Whole. 
 
An ordinance for both changes was never submitted to Council for approval.  This Ordinance 
makes the appropriate changes to City Code, Chapter 2, Article II, Section II. 
 
Enclosure: 

1. Ordinance 14-37 
2. Resolution 10-05 
3. Resolution 11-17  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14 Work Session 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 2 of 9 

 

ORDINANCE  14-37 
 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That Sec. 2-7 of the City Code is rewritten to read as follows:   
 

“Sec. 2-7.  Order of Business.  
 
The City Council can determine the order of the transaction of business at City Council 
meetings.” 

 
Section 2.  That Section 2-14 of the City Code relating to “Order of Reports” is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3.  That Sec. 2-22. Committees. is rewritten to read as follows: 
 

“Sec. 2-22. Committees. 
 
The City Council can appoint (or delegate to the Mayor to appoint) such committees 
relative to such matters and to perform such duties as the City Council may deem 
appropriate from time to time.” 

 

Section 4.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-37, upon motion of Council member __________________ 
and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the 
___ day of ______________, 2014:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. **. 
 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-37, An 
Ordinance Relating to City Council Committees, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on 14 July 2014 (See Minute Book 43, p. **).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 15th day of July 2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 4 of 9 

 

RESOLUTION 10-05 
 
 

A RESOLUTION 
ESTABLISHING CITY COUNCIL POLICY 

REGARDING CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE; 
CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS AND 

APPOINTMENT OF THE SERGEANT-AT-ARMS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council reorganizes itself during the first meetings after biennial 

Installation of newly elected officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, newly elected officials were Installed at the 14 December 2009 City Council 

meeting and as part of the reorganization the City Council appointed Council Member 
Lonnie Davis as Mayor Pro-Tempore and reappointed City Manager Ray Griffin, City 
Attorney John Zollicoffer and City Clerk Pamela Glover; and 

 
WHEREAS, another function of reorganization for the new City Council is to consider the 

appointment of Council Members to committees, boards and commissions; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is felt that the City Council practice of utilizing Work Sessions and it serving as 
the Committee of the Whole should be expanded and formalized as City Council Policy; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council may, at any time as it deems appropriate, appoint new 

committees, either standing or ad-hoc, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is felt that a Sergeant-at-Arms would be an appropriate appointment. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Henderson City Council that it 

approves the reorganization of its current committee structure to provide for the City 
Council to serve as the Committee of the Whole for matters that involve the former 
Finance and Budget Committee, Journal Committee, Legislative Committee, Community 
Development Committee, Public Works Committee and the Public Utilities Committee; 
said committee to operate in the Work Session environment and the Mayor shall serve as 
its Chairman and the Mayor Pro-Tempore as its Vice Chairman; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there will be five committees of Council, Human 

Resources Committee, Public Safety Committee, Land Planning and Development 
Committee, Boards and Commissions Committee and City-County Inter-governmental 
Committee, and each shall consist of four elected officials being appointed by the Mayor 
with consultation with Mayor-Pro Tempore.  The Mayor, in consultation with the Mayor 
Pro-Tempore, shall appoint the Chairman and Vice Chairman.  The Chairman will serve 
in the first year and as Vice Chairman in the second year of the term.  Conversely, the 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 5 of 9 

 

Vice Chairman shall serve in the first year and as Chairman in the second year of the 
term.  Committees shall meet on an as-needed basis only. 

    
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Police Chief, or his designee, shall serve as Sergeant-
at-Arms. 
 
The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Councilmember Rainey and seconded by 
Councilmember Peace on this the 11th  day of January 2010, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was approved by the following votes:   Evans, Coffey, Rainey, Inscoe, Daeke, Peace, 
Davis, and Daye  Noes:    None  Absent:  None 
 
 
       __________________________________  
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
       City of Henderson 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Pamela Glover, City Clerk  
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney  



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 6 of 9 

 

RESOLUTION 11—17 
 

A RESOLUTION 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A CITY COUNCIL LIAISON 

TO THE VANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND 
REORGANIZING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COMMITTEE 

 
WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2010, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals and 12 Core Values; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Core Value as follows:  Core Value 9: We value a 

good working relationship with the County of Vance and believe by working together in 
a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic challenges and opportunities 
facing our community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) have met several times 

during he past year via their respective inter-governmental committees to discuss items of 
mutual interest and concern; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is felt to be in the best interest of furthering City/County relations for the Mayor 

to appoint a liaison from the Council to the County Board of Commissioners.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 1) 

create the position of City-County Liaison and said duties and responsibilities of said 
Liaison being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution; and 2) 
authorizes the Mayor to appoint a member of City Council to serve as its Liaison to the 
Vance County Board of Commissioners; and 3) the City’s Inter-Governmental 
Committee will be absorbed by and become part of the Council’s Committee of the 
Whole.  



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 7 of 9 

 

The foregoing Resolution 11—17, upon motion of Council Member Daeke and second by 
Council Member Daye, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was  APPROVED on this the 14th day of February 2011:  YES:  Daye, Coffey, Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Davis.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  

     _____________________________  
     James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 

Reference:   

 10 January 2011,  28 January 2011 and 14 February 2011Minutes, Minute Book 42, p. 
39 
 CAF 10-25, 5 January 2011 
 Resolution 10-5, Resolution Book 1, p. 305. 
  CAF 10—9, 7 January 2010 



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 8 of 9 

 

Resolution 11-17 
Attachment A 

Roles and Responsibilities of the City/County Liaison 

 

I. Purpose 

To further develop and improve the relationship between the City of Henderson (City) 
and the County of Vance (County) by fostering improved communication and dialogue 
between the two entities.  It is expected the City/County Liaison process will result in a 
more timely and effective decision making process on issues of importance to both the 
City and County. 

II Core Values Addressed 

Core Value 9—Good Working Relationship with Vance County:  We value a good 
working relationship with the County of Vance and believe by working together in a 
cooperative effort we can better address the strategic challenges and opportunities facing 
our community. 

III Roles and Expectations of Liaison 
The position of City/County Liaison (Liaison) shall serve as the City Council’s main 
contact person with the Vance County Board of Commissioners County/City Liaison.   
The values by which the City’s Liaison shall work are summarized below: 

 The Liaison will only represent to his/her County counterpart the views, concerns, 
opinions and requests of the Council as a whole and not those of individual 
Council Members or a group of Council Members.   

 City Council will share its concerns on various matters as they arise and ask the 
Liaison to consult with his/her County counterpart, attempt to find common 
ground and to report progress and/or recommendations for it to consider at a 
future meeting. 

 The Liaison may make suggestions to the Mayor and City Council during its 
meetings on things he/she feels are important issues to carry before his/her 
County counterpart. 

 The Liaison will advise and seek recommendations and input from the City 
Council during its meetings and work sessions. 

 City Council reserves unto itself the sole right to accept and/or reject 
recommendations from the Liaison.   



CAF 14-79: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting: 28 July 2014 Work Session 
Page 9 of 9 

 

IV    Appointment 
 

The City Council may, at its discretion and by Resolution, repeal the Liaison process 
established by this Resolution.  The Mayor shall be authorized to appoint a Liaison from 
the membership of the City Council.  Subsequent to the initial appointment, the Mayor 
shall appoint the Liaison at the same time he/she makes City Council Committee 
appointments, said appointments customarily made at the first meeting of January 
following the seating of a new City Council. 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

4 August 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Pete O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-61-A 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-39-A, Accepting the 2014 BJA Grant in the 
amount of $16,935; and Ordinance 14-39, FY15 Budget Amendment #3, Establishing the 
2014 BJA Grant Project Budget. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO2:  Reduce Crime:  To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community; and KSO 8: Provide 

Financial Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay 
necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-39-A, Accepting the 2014 BJA Grant in the amount of $16,935; and 

Ordinance 14-39, FY15 Budget Amendment #3, Establishing the 2014 BJA Grant Project Budget. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
City Council authorized the submission of an application to the US Department of Justice for the 2014 
BJA JAG Grant in the amount of $16,935 on 5 May 2014 via Resolution 14-39. This grant is an annual 
submission that shares funding between the City and County.  This years’ allocations are in the amounts 
of $10,161 and $6,774; respectively. 
 
Notice has been received of grant award in the amount requested; therefore, it is requested that Council 
approve Resolution 14-39-A authorizing acceptance of the Grant and Ordinance 14-39 FY15 Budget 
Amendment #3 to establish budget for said grant. 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 14-39-A 
2. Ordinance 14-39 
3. Resolution 14-39 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: ___________________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Aug 14 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 16 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-39-A 
 

ACCEPTING THE 2014 BJA JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 
FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
AND THE COUNTY OF VANCE SHERIFF DEPARTMENT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 

2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 2: To 

Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for 
Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers 
and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
WHEREAS, the Council authorized the submission of a grant application for 2014 BJA funding that 

would be shared between the City of Henderson and the County of Vance via Resolution 14-39 at 
the Council’s 5 May 2014 meeting, said grant application being in the amount of $16,935, with 
$6,774 being designated for the Vance County Sheriff’s Department and $10,161 being 
designated for the City’s Police Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received notice of grant award in the amount of $16,935, said grant funds to be 

distributed to the City’s Police Department and the County’s Sheriff Department as noted in the 
preceding paragraph and it is now appropriate to accept the grant. 

 
 NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT it does 

hereby accept the 2014 BJA Grant in the amount of $16,935, said funds to be disbursed in 
accordance with grant requirements to the Henderson Police Department in the amount of 
$10,161 for the purchase of mobile cameras and the Vance County Sheriff Department in the 
amount of $6,774 for the purchase of law enforcement equipment; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mayor and City Manager are authorized to sign all 

documents necessary to accept and execute grant with the US Department of Justice, said grant 
agreement being more fully articulated in Attachment A of this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-39-A, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member 
**, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the 
*** day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 14-61-A 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 16 

 

 

 Resolution 14-39-A 
 Attachment A 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 16 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14-39 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2014 -- 2015 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 11 June 2014, adopted its 

FY 14-15 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Grants Projects Fund for active grant projects. 

said fund referred to as 55: Grants Projects Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and grants projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUND:
PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code enter date Budget Amendment Revised

Bureau of Justice Grant 55-209-458218 -$             -$               16,935$          16,935$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               16,935$          16,935$                      
16,935$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code enter date Budget Amendment Revised

Capital Outlay < $5,000 55-209-507400 -$             -$               10,161$          10,161$                      
VC Sheriff Dept Share 55-209-509031 -$             -$               6,774$            6,774$                        

-$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               16,935$          16,935$                      
16,935$                      

Variance -$               

Establishing Grant Project 55-209: 2014 BJA Grant

Reference:
CAF 14-61-A; Resolution 14-39-A; Ord 14-39; BA #3; 

8-11-14 Council Meeting

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Notes:
This ordinance serves to establish the grant project for the 2014 BJA Grant.  These funds are 
to be shared with Vance County on a 60/40 split, City/County respectively.  The City's portion 
will be used to purchase replacement in-car cameras and the County's portion will be used to 
purchase law enforcement equipment.

FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #3

Ordinance 14-39
55 Grants
2014 BJA Grant

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 14-39, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11th day of August 2014:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.                  ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 14-61-A 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 16 

 

____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-39 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ____________2014 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9 p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of            2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 16 

 

RESOLUTION 14-39 
 

A RESOLUTON AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM 
THE US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BJA JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

PROGRAM FOR 2014  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2014 
Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 2: To 

Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for 
Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers 
and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department is the law enforcement agency with the 

responsibility for law enforcement within the City of Henderson and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department seeks to use sworn officers to address crime and 

disorder problems within the City more effectively and safely; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department has successfully applied for and received grant 

funding for Law Enforcement purposes from the US Department of Justice BJA Justice 
Assistance Grant Program (BJA JAG) in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants Program has 

announced that funding applications be submitted to their program for consideration for 
funding in the 2014-2015 Federal Fiscal Year, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have entered into and executed 

Memorandums of Understanding with regards to funding from the US Department of 
Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have agreed to disperse the funds from 

US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Programs in the past with 60% of 
the funding being dispersed to the City of Henderson and 40% to Vance County as a 
disparate jurisdiction, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has been allocated by the US Department of Justice BJA 

Justice Assistance Grants Program as eligible to apply for $16,935 in funding.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the Chief of Police of the Henderson Police Department to submit this 
application for grant funding in the amount of $16,935, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution, and authorizes the City Manager to approve said 
Application and the Memorandum of Understanding with Vance County on behalf of the 
City (See Attachment B to this Resolution). 

 CAF 14-61-A 
 Attachment #3 



CAF 14-61-A: 11 August 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 16 

 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-39, upon motion of Council Member Kearney and second by 
Council Member Daye, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 12th day of May, 2014:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye and Kearney.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: 
None. 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
   
     
________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43,  p. 217 
 
 



Meetings and Events Calendar 
All Regular City Council Meetings Held 2nd & 4th Monday at 6:00 P.M. 

Date Time Event Location 

Sept 1st City Hall Closed 
 

Happy Labor Day CITY HALL CLOSED 

Sept 2nd 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Sept 8th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Sept 8th 5:00 PM Library Advisory Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

Sept 8th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Sept 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center 

Sept 18th   7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Sept 22nd 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Sept 26th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E-911 Advisory 

Board Meeting E-911 Operations Center 

Oct 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Oct 7th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Oct 9th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center 

Oct 13th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference 
Room

Oct 13th CANCELLED 
City Council Regular Meeting 

CANCELLED 
CANCELLED DUE TO NCLM 

CONFERENCE 

Oct 14th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Commission City Council Chambers 

Oct 16th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Oct 27th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Nov 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Nov 4th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Nov 10th 5:00 PM Library Advisory Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

Nov 10 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

 Last Updated 5 August 2014 






















	#24 RM 11 August 2014
	Jul 28 Short
	CAF 14-10-E Approving Resubmission of a CDBG Grant Application for Infrastructure Project R 14-02-A
	CAF 14-90 Lt Irvin W Robinsons Training Center ShelterArea Designation R 14-52
	CAF 14-86 Authorizing Lease Agreement with Episcopal Church for Breckenridge Park Use 14-67
	CAF 14-75 Parking Regulations O 14-36
	CAF 14-88 disposition of 306 Main Street to Vance county R 14-50
	CAF 14-79 Committee Ordinance Update
	CAF 14-61-A Accept BJA JAG 2014 Grant Award  R 14-39-A
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#7 July 2014 HFD Report

